
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                     (DECEMBER 23 2025) (Week 52 of 2025) 

                                     
I                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

                                                                                                   
      
Daniel A. Bittinger II          Kent T. Carper             David L. Dietrich        Mark E. Nelson          Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         570-7681                         870-9224                       540-1259                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        kcarper@woodburycountyiowa.gov          ddietrich@woodburycountyiowa.gov    mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov      matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 

You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held December 23, 
2025, at 4:00 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa, for the purpose 
of taking official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly 
come before the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. 
Members of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board 
of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board.  
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation 
on concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place 
after properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when 
approved by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a 
subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 
   

4:00 p.m.    Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence   

        
                    1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                Action                       
 
                                                                     Consent Agenda 

        Items 2 through 6 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one 

motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member.   

                  

                   2.  Approval of the minutes of December 16, 2025 

 

                   3.  Approval of claims 

 

                   4.  Veteran Affairs – Loni Kuhlmann 

                        Approval of appointment of Valerie Rose to the Veteran Affairs Commission 

 

                   5.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                        Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7QQ0sePQEtI
https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.
mailto:kcarper@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:ddietrich@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

 

                   6.  Secondary Roads – Laura Sievers 

                        Approval of utility permit for placement of new gas service lines in county right of way for   

                        MidAmerican Energy Company 

 

End of Consent Agenda  

 

                    7.  Board of Supervisors – Mark Nelson & Matthew Ung 

                         Approval to close Woodbury County government Friday, December 26th, and provide    Action 

                         one day of PTO to employees who must work to be used in FY26   

 

                    8.  Board of Supervisors – Daniel Bittinger 

                         a.  LEC maintenance fund update                                                                             Information 

                         b.  Approve Tony Wingert as the LECA at-large citizen for Woodbury County with          Action 

                              effective start date of January 20, 2026                       

 
                    9.  Planning/Zoning – Daniel Priestley 
4:40 p.m.         a.  Conduct the third and final public hearing on the Zoning Ordinance Map                    Action   
(Set time)              Amendment (Rezone) from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District  
                              to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District on Parcel #874624200011 for Doug   
                              Skinner (Skinner Holdings LLC)  
                         b.  Approve the third and final reading of the said Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment   Action           
                              (Rezone) from AP to AE on Parcel #874624200011 for Doug Skinner (Skinner 
                              Holdings LLC) 
                         c.  Approve the said Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from AP to AE         Action 
                              on parcel #874624200011 for Doug Skinner (Skinner Holdings LLC).  If  
                              determined, also approve with the condition of restricting development to no more 
                              than three additional single-family dwelling units within the said area to be rezoned 
                              and/or subdivided 
 
                        d.  Receive the final report and the Zoning Commission’s recommendation from their     Action 
                             11/24/25 meeting to approve the final plat of 252nd Overlook, a minor subdivision to 
                             Woodbury County, Iowa with the conditions of including a corrected plat dimension  
                             (754.64 feet) and a restriction limiting development to no more than three additional 
                             homes within the proposed subdivision area 
                        e.  Approve 252nd Overlook, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa with the       Action 
                             condition of including a corrected plat dimension (754.64 feet).  If determined, 
                             also approve with the condition of restricting development to no more than three 
                             additional single-family dwelling units within the proposed subdivision area   
                         
                 10.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                Information                                                          
 

                 11.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                        Information 
 
                 12.  Board Concerns                                                                                                         Information  
 
 
       

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                                                                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
MON., DEC 22      5:00 p.m.       Zoning Commission Meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom             

MON., JAN 5        5:00 p.m.       Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom 
   
WED., JAN 7        7:30 a.m.       SIMPCO Executive/Finance Committee, 6401 Gordon Drive   
 
                             4:45 p.m.       Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office,1211 Tri-View Ave.   
                            
WED., JAN 14      8:05 a.m.       Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 

                           12:00 p.m.       District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St. 

                             6:30 p.m.       911 Service Board Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill 

THU., JAN 15    12:00 p.m.       SIMPCO Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon Drive. 

                             4:00 p.m.      Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 

SAT., JAN 17      7:30 a.m.       SIMPCO Executive Finance Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordon Drive 

WED., JAN 21   12:00 p.m.      Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 

THU., JAN 22    10:00 a.m.      Siouxland Regional Transit System Board of Directors Meeting, 6401 Gordon Drive 

                           11:15 a.m.      WICIRHTF Board of Directors Meeting, 6401 Gordon Drive 

THU., JAN 15      4:30 p.m.      Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   

FRI., JAN 16     12:00 p.m.      Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave.                                                                                                 

MON., JAN 26    5:00 p.m.      Zoning Commission Meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom 

                                                           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                             

 
 
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable 

accommodations for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the 

Employer. 

 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national 
origin, pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil 
Rights Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to 
access the Iowa Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



 

 

DECEMBER 16, 2025, FIFTY-FIRST MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS   
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, December 16, 2025, at 2:30 p.m. Board members present were Carper, Dietrich, 
Nelson, Bittinger II (by phone for regular meeting, in person for closed session), and Ung. Staff members present were 
Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Ryan Ericson, Budget and Finance Director, Melissa Thomas, HR Director, 
Joshua Widman, Assistant County Attorney, and Michelle Skaff, Auditor/Clerk to the Board.   
 
Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to go into joint closed session with LEC Authority per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c).  
Carried 5-0 on roll-call vote. 
 
Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to go out of joint closed session with LEC Authority per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c).  
Carried 5-0 on roll-call vote. 
 
Closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(a) was canceled due to no participants. 
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
 
1. Motion by Nelson second by Dietrich to approve the December 16, 2025 agenda.  Carried 5-0. Copy filed. 
 

Motion by Nelson second by Dietrich to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2. To approve minutes of the December 9, 2025 meeting. Copy filed. 
 
3. To approve the claims totaling $1,211,297.87. Copy filed. 
 
4. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution setting the public hearing and sale dare for parcel 

#89472247701, 1724 Rock St. 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION  #13,978 

NOTICE OF PROPERTY SALE 
 

WHEREAS Woodbury County, Iowa was the owner under a tax deed of a certain parcel of real estate described as: 
 
Lots two hundred three (203) to two hundred nine (209), both inclusive, Kendon, an addition to Sioux City, in the 
County of Woodbury and State of Iowa 
(1724 Rock Street) 
 
NOW THEREFORE,  

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa as follows: 
 
1.   That a public hearing on the aforesaid proposal shall be held on 
       The 30th Day of December, 2025 at 4:35 o’clock p.m. in the basement of the    
       Woodbury County Courthouse.  

 
2.   That said Board proposes to sell the said parcel of real estate at a 
       public auction to be held on the 30th Day of December, 2025, immediately 
       following the closing of the public hearing. 

 
3. That said Board proposes to sell the said real estate to the highest 

bidder at or above a total minimum bid of $30,177.00 plus recording fees.  

4.  That this resolution, preceded by the caption "Notice of Property Sale" 
     and except for this subparagraph 4 be published as notice of the 
     aforesaid proposal, hearing and sale.  

4



December 16, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 2 
 

 

 
Dated this 16th Day of December, 2025. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
5a. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for PT EMT (.25 

FTE), Emergency Services Dept.  $24.62/hour; and Clerk II, County Treasurer Dept. AFSCME Courthouse: 
$19.82/hour.  Copy filed. 

 
5b. To approve the 2026 IBC renewal contract.  Copy filed. 
 
5c. To approve the 2026 COBRA Administration Renewal Agreement.  Copy filed. 
 
5d. To approve the Woodbury County’s 2026 medical plan renewal.  Copy filed. 
 
5e.  To approve the 2026 Delta Dental renewal.  Copy filed. 
 
6. To approve the property tax refund request for Closing Siouxland, parcel #884708303003, in the amount of 

$1,597.00.  Copy filed. 
 
7. To approve to schedule 3 public hearings on a proposed Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (rezone) of 7.99 (8) 

acres located on parcel #874732400009, Sections 32 & 33, T87N R47W (Liberty Township) from Agricultural 
Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District for Tuesday, January 13th, 2026, at 4:40 p.m., 
Tuesday, January 20th, 2026, at 4:40 p.m., and Tuesday, January 27th, 2026, at 4:40 p.m.  Copy filed. 

 
Carried 5-0.  
 
8. Motion by Nelson second by Bittinger to approve CMBA Architects Contract in the amount of $62,500.00 for the 

replacement of the Woodbury County Courthouse Freight Elevator.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
9a. A public hearing was held at 4:40 p.m. for the proposed Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (rezone) form AP to 

AE on parcel #874624200011 for Doug Skinner (Skinner Holdings LLC).   The Chairperson called on anyone wishing 
to be heard. 

 
 Cindy Foix, Gary McMullen, Darlynn McMullen addressed the board against the ordinance. Brent Feuchtenberger 

addressed the board in support of the ordinance. 
 
 Motion by Nelson second by Carper to receive a document from Ms. Foix. Carried 4-0, Dietrich abstained. 
 
 Motion by Nelson second by Carper to receive a document from Mr. Feuchtenberger. Carried 4-0, Dietrich 

abstained. 
 
 Motion by Nelson second by Carper to close the public hearing.  Carried 4-0, Dietrich abstained. 
 
9b. Motion by Nelson second by Bittinger to approve the second reading of the proposed Zoning Ordinance Map 

Amendment (rezone) from AP to AE on parcel #874624200011.  Carried 4-0, Dietrich abstained..  Copy filed. 
 
10. Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
11. There were no citizen concerns.   
  
12. Board concerns were heard. 
 
 The Board adjourned the regular meeting until December 23, 2025 at 4:00 pm. 
 

Meeting sign in sheet. Copy filed.  

5



December 16, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 3 
 

 

 
 

6



7



8



     

     

     

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT         
                                                                             

MEMORANDUM OF PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS                                                       
                          
                                         * PERSONNEL ACTION CODE:          
DATE:  _December 23, 2025_                  A- Appointment                      R-Reclassification 

                                                                                   T - Transfer   E- End of Probation 

                                                                                        P - Promotion   S - Separation 

      D - Demotion   O – Other 

 

TO:  WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 

NAME 

 

DEPARTMENT 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

 

JOB TITLE 

SALARY 

REQUESTED 

 

% 

INCREASE 

 

* 

 

REMARKS 

 

McDermott, 

Deborah 

 

 

 

Treasurer 

 

 

 

 

12-26-2025 

 

 

 

 

Clerk II 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

S 

 

 

 

 

Resigned 

 

 

 

Nunez-Diaz, 

Stefani 

 

 

Juvenile Detention 

 

 

 

 

01-05-2026 

 

 

 

 

Youth Worker 

 

 

 

 

$23.62/hour 

 

 

 

 

4%=$0.91/hr 

 
 

 

 

R 

 

 

Per AFSCME 

Juvenile – 

Move from 

Step 1 to Step 

2. Anniversary 

Date: 1/6/26 

 

 

Brass, Trevor 

 

 

 

 

Attorney’s Office 

 

 

 

01-05-2026 

 

 

 

Assistant 

County Attorney 

 

 

$122,157.00/year 

 

 

 
3%=$4,109.00/

yr 

 

 

 

R 

 

 

Per AFSCME 

Attorney – 

Move from 

Step 8 to Step 

9. Anniversary 

Date 1/15/26 

 

Wingert, 

Zachary 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

01-05-2026 

 

 

Deputy 

 

 

$35.55/hour 

 

  

A 

 

Authorization 

to Hire 

Approved on 

12/9/2025 

 

 

Uvence, Ven 

 

 

 

Treasurer 

 

 

01-12-2025 

 

 

Clerk II - Tax 

 

 

$19.82/hour 

  

 

A 

Job Vacancy 

Posted on 

10/22/25. Entry 

Level Salary: 

$19.82/hr 

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

       

 

APPROVED BY BOARD DATE:          ______________________________  

 

       

 

MELISSA THOMAS, HR DIRECTOR:        ______________________________ 

           

 

9



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

12/18/2025 12/23/2025

Laura M. Sievers, PE, County Engineer

✔

✔

Consideration of utility permit for placement of new gas service lines in county right of way 

MidAmerican Energy Company has applied for a permit to install two new gas service lines under old US 75 in 
Salix.

Work in county ROW requires a permit approved by the Board of Supervisors per section 318.8 of the Code of 
Iowa.  The county engineer has reviewed the location and recommends that the work be allowed.  

No financial impact to the county.

Recommend approval of the permit for MidAmerican Energy Company.

Motion to approve the underground utility permit for MidAmerican Energy Company.

10



11



12



13



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

12/18/25 12/23/25

Supervisors Mark Nelson & Matthew Ung

✔

Approval to close Woodbury County government Friday, December 26, and provide one day of PTO to 
employees who must work to be used in FY26

Christmas is on a Thursday so closing county government on Friday would give employees an extra day with 
their families. Full-time employees required to work would get 8 hours PTO for later use.

Aside from this year, the last time Christmas fell on a Thursday was 2014, and the next time will be 2031. This 
has the impact of Friday being a standalone work day, when considering time off for Christmas Eve. This is a  
rare opportunity to give many staff a surprise 5-day Christmas weekend.

Mark, by the power of positive energy, had this written as "N/A", but Matthew, as fiduciary buzzkill, is disclosing 
the cost as one day of Woodbury County government payroll.

Approve a paid day off for county staff as a "thank you" for their hard work and dedication throughout the year. 
The intention is for this day to be treated like a "preplanned snow day," and to follow the process of a weather 
closure.

Motion to close Woodbury County government Friday, December 26 as a paid day off and provide one day's 
worth of PTO to employees required to work, up to 8 hours for full-time employees and prorated for part-time, 
to be used by June 30, 2026.

14



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

12/19/2025 12/23/2025

Supervisor Daniel Bittinger

✔

✔

✔

LECA At-Large Citizen Appointment for Woodbury County

A new, 6 year term, for the LECA at-large citizen representative starts January 1, 2026. The current citizen 
at-large, 6 year term, ends on December 31, 2025

The LEC has entered the next phase of general operations & long-term maintenance. The Board of
Supervisors desires to have an at-large citizen representative with experience in jail operations and
maintenance. Tony Wingert will retire from the WCSO on January 15, 2026. He has experience of jail
operations & maintenance throughout his career serving under multiple sheriffs.

None

Motion to approve Tony Wingert as the LECA at-large citizen for Woodbury County with effective start date of 
January 20, 2026. 

Motion to approve Tony Wingert as the LECA at-large citizen for Woodbury County with effective start date of 
January 20, 2026. 

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

12/19/2025 12/23/2025

Supervisor Daniel Bittinger

✔

✔

LEC Maintenance Fund Update

General updates regarding the LEC maintenance fund.

The public and Sioux City City Council have asked about the continuance of the LEC maintenance fund. The 
Board of Supervisors desires to communicate once again that the maintenance fund is fully funded & will 
continually be funded each year, will not be dissolved but used for the intended purpose to ensure the LEC 
facility is in correct working order throughout the lifetime of the building.

None

n/a 

n/a

26



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

12/18/25 12/23/25 4:40 PM

Daniel J. Priestley

The Board of Supervisors will hold a public hearing to consider a proposed Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment to rezone a 36.50-
acre portion of the property located in the Southeast quarter of the Northwest quarter (SE1/4-NW1/4), Northeast quarter of the
Southwest quarter (NE1/4-SW1/4), and Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter (NW1/4-SE1/4) of Section 24, Township 87
North, Range 46 West of the 5th P.M., Woodbury County, Iowa. The property is known as GIS Parcel #874624200011.

Following the public hearing, the Board may defer consideration of the proposal; or reject the proposal; or proceed to adopt an
ordinance approving the amendment to the zoning district map.

A 60% majority of the Board of Supervisors shall be required to adopt the proposed amendment of the zoning district map if the
owners of more than 20% of either, (a) the area of the subject property or (b) the area of real property lying within 500 feet of the
subject property file a written objection prior to the conclusion of the public hearing.

The Board of Supervisors may impose restrictive conditions upon the approval of an amendment to the zoning district map if, before
the conclusion of the public hearing, the owner agrees to the conditions in writing.

Doug Skinner (Skinner Holdings LLC) has submitted two related applications for a 36.50-acre portion of GIS Parcel
#874624200011: a minor subdivision for a development to be called "252nd Overlook," and a Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment
to rezone the same property from Agricultural Preservation (AP) to Agricultural Estates (AE). The property is located in the the
SE1/4 of the NW1/4, NE1/4 of the SW1/4, and NW1/4 of the SE1/4 of Section 24, Township 87 North, Range 46 West of the 5th
P.M., Woodbury County, Iowa, and is located at 2374 252nd St., Hornick, IA 51026. It lies approximately seven miles east of Salix
and seven miles north of Hornick, east of Old Highway 141, west of Franklin Avenue, and on the south side of 252nd Street. The
rezoning from AP to AE is requested to permit future development of the lots created by the proposed subdivision and to satisfy
Section 3.01.1 B of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance. Notices and reviews for these applications have been completed: a
legal notice ran in the Sioux City Journal on November 13, 2025 for the Zoning Commission public hearing and will run on
December 4, 2025 for the Board of Supervisors public hearings; property owners within 1,000 feet received mailed notice on
November 10, 2025 of the Zoning Commission public hearing scheduled for November 24, 2025; and relevant government
agencies, utilities, and other stakeholders were notified and asked to comment. The Woodbury County Engineer reviewed the
proposal, found it compliant with Iowa Code closure requirements, and advised that the property owner must coordinate with the
engineer’s office for any future access or modifications to existing access that require permits. The property is currently located in
the AP zoning district and is not in the floodplain. The Zoning Commission’s recommendations on both the rezone from AP to AE
and the minor subdivision, along with draft minutes from the November 24, 2025 meeting, are included in the report received by the
Board of Supervisors on December 9, 2025. They are also included in the backup materials for the 252nd Overlook minor
subdivision agenda item for the December 23, 2025 meeting.

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 874624200011
Township/Range: T87N R46W
Section: 24
Quarter: Those portions of the Southeast quarter of the Northwest quarter (SE1/4-NW1/4),Northeast quarter of the Southwest
quarter (NE1/4-SW1/4), and Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter (NW1/4-SE1/4) of Section 24, Township 87 North, Range
46 West of the 5th P.M., Woodbury County, Iowa, described as follows:
Zoning District: AP
Floodplain: Zone X
Property Address: 2374 252nd St., Hornick, IA 51026

a. Conduct the Third and Final Public Hearing on the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning
District to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District on Parcel #874624200011 for Doug Skinner (Skinner Holdings LLC).
b. Approve the Third and Final Reading of the said Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from AP to AE on Parcel #874624200011 for
Doug Skinner (Skinner Holdings LLC).
c. Approve the said Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from AP to AE on Parcel #874624200011 for Doug Skinner (Skinner Holdings
LLC). If determined, also approve with the condition of restricting development to no more than three additional single-family dwelling units within
the said area to be rezoned and/or subdivided.

✔

✔

✔

✔

27



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

0

Open and close the public hearing. (Set Time: 4:40 PM)

Conduct and approve the third and final reading of the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone).

a. Conduct the Third and Final Public Hearing on the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from the Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Zoning District to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District on Parcel #874624200011 for Doug Skinner (Skinner Holdings LLC).

b. Approve the Third and Final Reading of the said Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from AP to AE on Parcel #874624200011 for
Doug Skinner (Skinner Holdings LLC).

c. Approve the said Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from AP to AE on Parcel #874624200011 for Doug Skinner (Skinner Holdings
LLC). If determined, also approve with the condition of restricting development to no more than three additional single-family dwelling units within
the said area to be rezoned and/or subdivided.

28



1 

 

 
 

29



2 

 

30



3 

 

 

31



32



33



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

12/18/25 12/23/25

Daniel J. Priestley

The Board of Supervisors will hold a public hearing to consider a proposed Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment to rezone a 6.75
acre more or less acre portion of the property owned by the LeFebvre Family Trust. The subject property, identified as Parcel
#884604100004, is located in Section 4, T88N R46W (Floyd Township), within the SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of the Agricultural
Preservation (AP) Zoning District. The property is situated at 1650 Delaware Ave., Lawton, IA 51030, approximately one mile west
of Lawton and 4.5 miles east of Sioux City, on the east side of Delaware Avenue, approximately 1,800 feet south of Highway 20.
The rezoning is proposed to accommodate the future construction of a residence on Lot 1 of the LeFebvre Addition, which is
required under Section 3.01.1 B of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance.

Following the public hearing, the Board may defer consideration of the proposal; or reject the proposal; or proceed to adopt an
ordinance approving the amendment to the zoning district map.

A 60% majority of the Board of Supervisors shall be required to adopt the proposed amendment of the zoning district map if the
owners of more than 20% of either, (a) the area of the subject property or (b) the area of real property lying within 500 feet of the
subject property file a written objection prior to the conclusion of the public hearing.

The Board of Supervisors may impose restrictive conditions upon the approval of an amendment to the zoning district map if, before
the conclusion of the public hearing, the owner agrees to the conditions in writing.

Doug Skinner (Skinner Holdings LLC) has submitted two related applications for a 36.50-acre portion of GIS Parcel
#874624200011: a minor subdivision for a development to be called "252nd Overlook," and a Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment
to rezone the same property from Agricultural Preservation (AP) to Agricultural Estates (AE). The property is located in the the
SE1/4 of the NW1/4, NE1/4 of the SW1/4, and NW1/4 of the SE1/4 of Section 24, Township 87 North, Range 46 West of the 5th
P.M., Woodbury County, Iowa, and is located at 2374 252nd St., Hornick, IA 51026. It lies approximately seven miles east of Salix
and seven miles north of Hornick, east of Old Highway 141, west of Franklin Avenue, and on the south side of 252nd Street. The
rezoning from AP to AE is requested to permit future development of the lots created by the proposed subdivision and to satisfy
Section 3.01.1 B of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance. Notices and reviews for these applications have been completed: a
legal notice ran in the Sioux City Journal on November 13, 2025 for the Zoning Commission public hearing and will run on
December 4, 2025 for the Board of Supervisors public hearings; property owners within 1,000 feet received mailed notice on
November 10, 2025 of the Zoning Commission public hearing scheduled for November 24, 2025; and relevant government
agencies, utilities, and other stakeholders were notified and asked to comment. The Woodbury County Engineer reviewed the
proposal, found it compliant with Iowa Code closure requirements, and advised that the property owner must coordinate with the
engineer’s office for any future access or modifications to existing access that require permits. The property is currently located in
the AP zoning district and is not in the floodplain. The Zoning Commission’s recommendations on both the rezoning and the minor
subdivision, along with draft minutes from the November 24, 2025 meeting, are included on the following pages. Comments
received from the public as of the distribution of this packet are included in the subsequent pages of this report.

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 874624200011
Township/Range: T87N R46W
Section: 24
Quarter: Those portions of the Southeast quarter of the Northwest quarter (SE1/4-NW1/4),Northeast quarter of the Southwest
quarter (NE1/4-SW1/4), and Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter (NW1/4-SE1/4) of Section 24, Township 87 North, Range
46 West of the 5th P.M., Woodbury County, Iowa, described as follows:
Zoning District: AP
Floodplain: Zone X
Property Address: 2374 252nd St., Hornick, IA 51026

a. Motion to receive the final report and the Zoning Commission's recommendation from their 11/24/25 meeting to approve the final plat of 252nd
Overlook, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa with the conditions of including a corrected plat dimension (754.64 feet) and a restriction
limiting development to no more than three additional homes within the proposed subdivision area.

b. Motion to accept and approve 252nd Overlook, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa with the condition of including a corrected plat
dimension (754.64 feet). If determined, also approve with the condition of restricting development to no more than three additional single-family
dwelling units within the proposed subdivision area.

✔ ✔

✔

34



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

0

Receive the final report and the Zoning Commission's recommendation from their 11/24/25 meeting to
approve the final plat of 252nd Overlook, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa with the conditions
of including a corrected plat dimension (754.64 feet) and a restriction limiting development to no more than
three additional homes within the proposed subdivision area.

Accept and approve 252nd Overlook, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa with the condition of
including a corrected plat dimension (754.64 feet). If determined, also approve with the condition of
restricting development to no more than three additional single-family dwelling units within the proposed
subdivision area.

a. Motion to receive the final report and the Zoning Commission's recommendation from their 11/24/25 meeting to approve the final plat of 252nd
Overlook, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa with the conditions of including a corrected plat dimension (754.64 feet) and a
restriction limiting development to no more than three additional homes within the proposed subdivision area.

b. Motion to accept and approve 252nd Overlook, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa with the condition of including a corrected plat
dimension (754.64 feet). If determined, also approve with the condition of restricting development to no more than three additional single-family
dwelling units within the proposed subdivision area.

35



S24°54'36"E 608.87'

NO CAP

34.3'

NO CAP 100d SPIKE

NO CAP NO CAP

41.4'

43.5' SE1/4
-NW1/4

NE1/4-
SW1/4

NW1/4-S
E1/4

S e c .   2 4 - 8 7 - 4 6

SW1/4-N
E1/4

3.452 Ac.
Lot 1

6.303 Ac.
Lot 2

95.25'

N65°05'24"E

C2

L=90.50

S66°40'50"W 271.44'

N24°54'36"W
 757.64'

S51°46'05"W
 261.06'

S53°09'59"E
118.99'

S22°34'26"E

148.31'

S12°41'54"E 273.21'

S53°09'59"E
112.20'

S47°08'00"E
84.54'

S60°47'11"E 213.82' N88°29'33"E
160.55'

N74°44'40"E 511.50'

S0
0°

08
'2

6"
W

 5
24

.1
7'

S87°56'49"E 361.35'

S26°04'28"E 838.63'

S0
0°

30
'4

2"
W

 5
50

.0
0'

N87°31'11"W 728.62'

N24°54'36"W
 1436.51''

N88°17'08"W 318.36'

N
02

°4
6'

05
"E

 5
20

.1
1'

S87°56'49"E 2238.99'

S88°17'08"E 360.03'

L=229.55' ,
R=325.00' ,

∆=40°28'04"

C
hor d=224.81'

Br g.=S32°55'57"E

L=186.88' , R=350.00' ,

∆=30°35'33"

Chor d=184.67'

Br g.=S37°52'12"E

C u r v e   T a b l e

Curve #

C1

C2

Delta

24°30'50"

15°57'14"

Radius

325.00'

325.00'

Length

139.05'

90.50'

Chord Dir. - Length

S24°57'20"E-137.99'

S45°11'22"E-90.20'

N66°40'50"E     5
00.78'

S66°40'50"W 229.34'

E1/4 COR.
SEC. 24-87-46

FOUND WPA MON.

CENTER, SEC. 24-87-46
POINT OF BEGINNING

SOUTH LINE
NW1/4-SE1/4
SEC. 24-87-46

NORTH LINE
NE1/4-SW1/4
SEC. 24-87-46

NW COR.
NE1/4-SW1/4
SEC. 24-87-46

NORTH LINE, SE1/4
SEC. 24-87-46

SW COR.
NW1/4-SE1/4

SEC. 24-87-46

EAST LINE, NW1/4
SEC. 24-87-46

252n
d Str

eet

S79°09'34"E135.86'

EXISTING 66.00' PUBLIC ROAD R.O.W.

70.00'

N74°53'19"E 506.68'
S47°16'09"E 79.84'

42.12' 118.43'

8.120 Ac.
Lot 3

EXISTING SEPTIC
TANK/FIELD

EXISTING WELL

EXISTING HOUSE

EXISTING STEEL UTILITY BUILDING

150.2'

EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE

60.0' PRIVATE ACCESS EASEMENT
CREATED BY THIS PLAT

30'

30'

N40°
23'

06"
E 16

5.6
7'

10.0' TRAIL EASEMENT
CREATED BY THIS PLAT

347.00'

3.064 Ac.
Lot 5

C1
L=139.05

INCL. 0.326 Ac.
PUBLIC R.O.W.

INCL. 0.483 Ac.
PUBLIC R.O.W.

60.0' PRIVATE ACCESS EASEMENT
CREATED BY THIS PLAT

30' 30'

#7193

L=114.53', R=384.45',
Chord=114.11'
Brg.=S84°04'37"W

L=269.19' , R=384.45',

Chor d=263.73'

Br g.=N67°19'44"W

WEST LINE, NW1/4-SE1/4
SEC. 24-87-46

15.561 Ac.
Lot 4

S58°12'43"E 696.58'

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION:

I, David A. Lamberton, a duly licensed Land Surveyor under the provisions of the
laws of the State of Iowa, holding Certificate No. 15746, do hereby certify that the
Plat of 252nd Overlook, a Minor Subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa, is a true
representation of a survey made by me or under my direct supervision, and that the
same is located upon and comprises the whole of the attached described property.

I do hereby certify that there are contained in said description the lots described in
the Addition platted; that the same are of the dimensions, numbers, names and
locations as shown on said plat and that iron stakes will be placed as required by
Iowa Code.

 Dated at Sioux City, Iowa _______________________________, 2025

 ____________________________________________________
 David A. Lamberton,  Iowa No. 15746
 License Renewal Date: December 31, 2026 Date: November 19, 2025

Drawn By: DAL
Project No. 275071
Sheet:     1 OF 2

DGR Engineering
6115 Whispering Creek Drive

Sioux City, IA  51106
(712) 266-1554
www.dgr.com

OWNER / SUBDIVIDER:
Skinner Holdings, L.L.C.
300 Centennial Drive, Suite 295
North Sioux City, SD 57049
712-251-2476

SURVEYOR:
DGR Engineering
6115 Whispering Creek Drive
Sioux City, IA 51106
(712) 266-1554
David A. Lamberton, PLS
dave.lamberton@dgr.com

SUBDIVISION:
5 Lots = 36.500 Acres
Smallest Lot = 3.452 Acres

FEMA:
Zone X, Area of Minimal Flood Hazard

PROPOSED ZONING:
AE - Agricultural Estates

Setbacks:
Front yard = 75'
Side yard = 20'
  Accessory structure = 10'
Rear yard =  50'
  Accessory structure = 10'

F I N A L   P L A T   O F

252nd OVERLOOK
A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

INDEX LEGEND:

PART OF: SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, NW1/4-SE1/4,
Section 24, T87N-R46W

CURRENT PROPRIETOR: Skinner Holdings, L.L.C.

SURVEY REQUESTED BY: Skinner Holdings, L.L.C.

PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO:
David A. Lamberton, DGR Engineering, 6115 Whispering Creek Dr.,
Sioux City,  IA   51106    (712) 266-1554    dave.lamberton@dgr.com

SUBDIVISION DESCRIPTION:

Those portions of the Southeast quarter of the Northwest quarter (SE1/4-NW1/4),
Northeast quarter of the Southwest quarter (NE1/4-SW1/4), and Northwest quarter
of the Southeast quarter (NW1/4-SE1/4) of Section 24, Township 87 North, Range
46 West of the 5th P.M., Woodbury County, Iowa, described as follows:

Beginning at the Center quarter corner of said Section 24; thence South 87°56'49" East
along the north line of the SE1/4 of said Section 24 for a distance of 361.35 feet;
thence South 26°04'28" East for a distance of 838.63 feet; thence South 00°30'42" West
for a distance of 550.00 feet to the south line of the NW1/4-SE1/4 of said Section 24;
thence North 87°31'11" West along said south line for a distance of 728.62 feet to the
southwest corner of said NW1/4-SE1/4; thence North 24°54'36" West for a distance of
1436.51 feet to the north line of the NE1/4-SW1/4 of said Section 24; thence North
88°17'08" West along said north line for a distance of 318.36 feet; thence North
02°46'05" East for a distance of 520.11 feet to the centerline of 252nd Street (formerly
Grange Ave) as described in legal description found on Roll 156, Image 1615 in the
Woodbury County Recorder's Office; thence South 47°08'00" East along said center
line for a distance of 84.54 feet; thence South 60°47'11" East along said center line for
a distance of 213.82 feet; thence North 88°29'33" East along said center line for a
distance of 160.55 feet; thence North 74°44'40" East along said center line for a
distance of 511.50 feet to the east line of the NW1/4 of said Section 24; thence South
00°08'26" West for a distance of 524.17 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 36.50
acres more or less. Subject to easements, if any, of record or apparent.

I O W A

PR
O

FE
SS

IO

NAL  LAND SURVEYO
R

DAVID A.
LAMBERTON

15746

SET 1/2" x 30" REBAR w/ ORANGE CAP #15746

FOUND 1/2" REBAR w/ ORANGE CAP #15746

FOUND 1/2" REBAR w/ YELLOW CAP #10570

LEGEND

FOUND 5/8" REBAR w/ YELLOW CAP #13202

NOTES:
· See Plat of Survey - Roll 727, Image 3106.
· See Plat of Survey - Instrument #: 2024-03232.
· Boundary line along 252nd St. determined from legal description

found on Roll 156, Image 1615 and found monuments in road.
· R.O.W. easement determined from Woodbury County Project L-273

plans, and existing centerline of road.

Acreage Breakdown:
NW1/4-SE1/4 = 18.45 ac.
NE1/4-SW1/4 =  8.97 ac.
SE1/4-NW1/4 =  9.08 ac.
GROSS AREA  = 36.50 ac.
ROAD ROW =     0.81 ac.
NET AREA =    35.69 ac.

SCALE
1 inch = 120 feet

All bearings are referenced to the Iowa
Regional Coordinate System, Zone 4

VICINITY MAP NO SCALE

36



F I N A L   P L A T   O F

252nd OVERLOOK
A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

Date: November 19, 2025
Drawn By: DAL
Project No. 275071
Sheet:     2 OF 2

DGR Engineering
6115 Whispering Creek Drive

Sioux City, IA  51106
(712) 266-1554
www.dgr.com

RESOLUTION AND CERTIFICATE OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY
ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

I, Chris Zellmer Zant, do hereby certify that I am the Chairperson of the Woodbury
County Zoning Commission of Woodbury County, Iowa, and do further certify that said
Commission did take under advisement the attached Plat of 252nd Overlook, a Minor
Subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa, and that said Woodbury County Zoning
Commission of Woodbury County, Iowa did on the ____ day of_______________, ___
approve the same and does further hereby recommend to the Woodbury County Board
of Supervisors, Woodbury County, Iowa, the acceptance and approval of said Plat.

Dated  ___________________________, _______________________________
                                                               Chris Zellmer Zant
                                                              Chairperson, Woodbury County Zoning

Commission of Woodbury County, Iowa

CERTIFICATE OF COUNTY ASSESSOR

I, Tyler Mogensen, hereby certify that on the_____day of _________________, _____,
a copy of this Plat was filed in the Woodbury County Assessor's Office.

 Dated  _________________________, ____________________________
Tyler Mogensen
City Assessor

TREASURER'S CERTIFICATE OF
TAXES AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

I, Tina M. Bertrand, Treasurer of Woodbury County, Iowa, do hereby certify that the land
described in the attached and foregoing Surveyor's Certificate is free from certified taxes
and certified special assessments.

Dated  _________________________, _____________________________
Tina M. Bertrand
Treasurer Woodbury County, Iowa

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS RESOLUTION NO.                                             .

Resolution accepting and approving the Plat of 252nd Overlook, a Minor Subdivision to
Woodbury County, Iowa.

Whereas, it appears that said plat conforms with all the provisions of the code of the
State of Iowa and ordinances of Woodbury County, Iowa, with reference to the filing of
same; AND

Whereas, the Zoning Commission of Woodbury County, Iowa has recommended the
acceptance and approval of said plat; AND

Whereas, the County Engineer of Woodbury County, Iowa has recommended the
acceptance and approval of said plat.

Now therefore, be, and it is hereby resolved by the Woodbury County Board of
Supervisors, Woodbury County, Iowa, that said Plat of 252nd Overlook, a Minor
Subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa, be, and the same is hereby accepted and
approved, and the chairman and secretary of the Woodbury County Board of
Supervisors, Woodbury County, State of Iowa, are hereby directed to furnish to the
owners an proprietors a certified copy of this resolution as required by law.

Passed and approved this _______ day of  ___________________________, ______

________________________________
Daniel A. Bittenger II
Chairman
Board of Supervisors
Woodbury County, Iowa

________________________________
ATTEST:  Michelle K. Skaff
Secretary

COUNTY ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATE

I, Laura Sievers, P.E., The County Engineer of Woodbury County, Iowa, do hereby
certify that I have reviewed the attached plat and have mathematically computed the
error of closure of the plat perimeter and of the lots contained therein, and find that
said plat conforms with the closure requirements of the Woodbury County Subdivision
Ordinance for the unincorporated area of Woodbury County, Iowa.

 Dated  ______________________, ___________________________________
Laura Sievers, P.E.
County Engineer, Woodbury County, Iowa

AUDITOR AND RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE OF RECORDING

STATE OF IOWA :
: ss

COUNTY OF WOODBURY :

Docket No: ____________________________

Filed for record, this___________day of_________________________, _____,

at________o'clock _____.M. recorded in Plat Envelope_____________, indexed
and delivered to the County Auditor of Woodbury County, Iowa.

Dated  _________________________, _________________________________
Michelle K. Skaff, Auditor and Recorder,
Woodbury County, Iowa
By: Diane Swoboda Peterson, Deputy

AUDITOR'S APPROVAL OF SUBDIVISION NAME OR TITLE

The County Auditor hereby accepts and approves the name or title of the
attached Subdivision Plat as required by Iowa Code section 354.6(2).

Dated  ________________________, _________________________________
Michelle K. Skaff, Auditor and Recorder,
Woodbury County, Iowa
By: Diane Swoboda Peterson, Deputy

DEDICATION

Skinner Holdings, LLC, a South Dakota limited liability company, the owner of the real
estate described in the attached Surveyor's Certificate, has in the pursuance of the law,
caused said described real estate to be surveyed, staked and platted into lots and
easements, as is particularly shown and set forth in the attached Plat and said Certificate
of David A. Lamberton, a Licensed Surveyor who surveyed and platted the real estate to
be known as 252nd Overlook, a Minor Subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa; that the
same is prepared with the free consent and in accordance with the desires as owner and
proprietor thereof.

Executed at Sioux City, Iowa, the ________day of____________________, _____.

SKINNER HOLDINGS, LLC

By: __________________________________
       Douglas Skinner, Manager

STATE OF IOWA :
: ss

COUNTY OF WOODBURY :

This record was acknowledged before me on _________________________________,
by Douglas Skinner, as Manager of Skinner Holdings, LLC.

________________________________
    Notary Public - State of Iowa

TITLE OPINION

TO: COUNTY AUDITOR AND RECORDER
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

Dear Madam:

We have this date examined a complete abstract to Title, pursuant to Iowa Code Section
354.11(1)(c) to property which includes in its entirety, property described in the surveyor’s
certificate on the plat of: 252nd Overlook, a Minor Subdivision of the City of Sioux City, Woodbury
County, Iowa, last certified by Engleson Abstract Co., Inc., dated _______________, 2025 at 8:59
a.m. and from said abstract find good and merchantable title to said premises vested in Skinner
Holdings, LLC, the proprietor, free and clear of all mortgages, liens and other encumbrances,
except as follows:

1. Mortgage from Skinner Holdings, LLC, to Central Bank, dated May 14, 2021, and filed on
May 18, 2021, as Instrument #2021-06689.

2. Option Agreement from Skinner Holdings, LLC, to Habitat Restoration Services, LLC, dated
June 13, 2025, filed on June 17, 2025, as Instrument #2025-06047.

3. Easement from Leo Lux and Mary Lux, husband and wife to Woodbury County Soil
Conservation District of Sioux City, Iowa, dated August 27, 1960 and filed October 7, 1960, in Book
957, Page 303.

4. Easement from C.J. Hector and Lois V. Drake, (Single) to Woodbury County, Iowa dated
March 26, 1954 and filed May 4, 1954, in Book 748, Page 264.

5. Easement from C.J. Hector and Lois V. Drake, (Single) to Woodbury County, Iowa dated
March 26, 1954 and filed May 4, 1954 in Book 748, Page 262Development Agreement between
Clayton Creek, L.L.C. and the City of Sioux City, Iowa, dated April 24, 2017 and filed on April 25,
2017 in Roll 752, Image 4744.

6. Easement from Emil Levich and Frankie Levich, husband and wife, to Woodbury County Soil
Conservation District of Sioux City, Iowa, its successors and assigns, dated May 2, 1960 and filed
May 10. 1960 in Book 947, Page 385.

7. Maintenance Agreement dated May 12, 1960 and filed May 12, 1960 in Book 947, Page 415.

8. Easement from Emil Levich and Frankie Levich, husband and wife, to Woodbury County Soil
Conservation District of Sioux City, Iowa, its successors and assigns, dated September 27, 1960
and filed October 7, 1960 in Book 957, Page 294.

9. Maintenance Agreement dated September 27, 1960 and filed October 7, 1960 in Book 957,
Page 288.

10. Easement for Use of Trail System, dated March 29, 2024, filed April 1, 2024 in Inst.
#2024-02717.

11. All certified real estate taxes and special assessments due and payable have been paid.
Real estate taxes and special assessments not certified are a lien in an undetermined amount.

Dated: _____________________, _______.

______________________
Alex S. Berenstein
ATTORNEY AT LAW

STATEMENT OF MORTGAGE HOLDER

The undersigned Central Bank, the present owner and holder of the Mortgage, recorded as
Document Number: 2021-06689, states that the Plat of 252nd Overlook, a Minor Subdivision to
Woodbury County, Iowa, is prepared with Central Bank's free consent and in accordance with
its desire. This statement is made in accordance with Iowa Code section 354.11(1)(b).

Dated: _________________________, _____.
Central Bank
By: _____________________________

Its: _____________________________
STATE OF IOWA :

: ss
COUNTY OF WOODBURY :

This record was acknowledged before me on the ____________________________________,

by ________________________________ as ________________________ of Central Bank.

By: ____________________________
Notary Public in and for said State

CONSENT TO PLATTING

The undersigned Habitat Restoration Services, LLC, the present owner and holder of the
Option Agreement, recorded as Document Number: 2025-06047, states that the Plat of 252nd
Overlook, a Minor Subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa, is prepared with Habitat Restoration
Services, LLC's free consent and in accordance with its desire. This statement is made in
accordance with Iowa Code section 354.11(1)(b).

Dated: _________________________, ______.

Habitat Restoration Services, LLC

By: __________________________________
Brenton Feuchtenberger, Manager

STATE OF IOWA :
: ss

COUNTY OF WOODBURY :

This record was acknowledged before me on ____________________________________,
by Brenton Feuchtenberger, as Manager of Habitat Restoration Services, LLC.

By: ____________________________
Notary Public in and for said State

37



38



39



4 

 

 

 

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING 
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101 

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax) 

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                         Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk 
dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov 

 

REPORT FOLLOWING ZONING COMMISSION MEETING AND RECOMMENDATION (POST NOVEMBER 24, 2025) 
ZONING ORDINANCE MAP AMENDMENT PROPOSAL AND  

252 OVERLOOK – MINOR SUBDIVISION PROPOSAL 
APPLICATION DETAILS 

Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Doug Skinner of Skinner Holdings 
LLC 

Application Type(s): Minor Subdivision and Zoning 
Ordinance Map Amendment 

Name of Subdivision: 252nd Overlook 

Application Date: 11/4/25 

Number of Lots: 5 

Total Acres: 36.50 

Extraterritorial Review: None 

Legal Notice Date: November 13, 2025 

Neighbor(s) Notice Date: November 10, 2025 

Stakeholder(s) Notice Date: November 6 and November 12 

Zoning Commission Public 
Hearing Date: 

November 24 

Board of Supervisors 
Agenda Date: 

December 9, 16, 23 

Attorney: Alex Bernstein – 712-389-4302 

Surveyor: Dave Lamberton – 712-203-1323 
 

PROPERTY DETAILS 

Parcel(s): 874624200011 

Township/Range: T87N R46W 

Section: 24 

Quarter: Those portions of the Southeast quarter of the Northwest 

quarter (SE1/4-NW1/4),Northeast quarter of the Southwest 
quarter (NE1/4-SW1/4), and Northwest quarter of the 
Southeast quarter (NW1/4-SE1/4) of Section 24, Township 87 
North, Range 46 West of the 5th P.M., Woodbury County, 

Iowa, described as follows: 

Zoning District: AP 

Floodplain: Zone X 

Property Address: 2374 252nd St., Hornick, IA 51026 

 

CONTENTS 

SUMMARY, AERIAL MAP, PLAT EXCERPT  

APPLICATIONS  

FINAL PLAT / ZONING ORDINANCE MAP AMENDMENT  

REVIEW CRITERIA  

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION, STAKEHOLDER INPUT   

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION  

  
 

SUMMARY 
Doug Skinner (Skinner Holdings LLC) has submitted two related applications for a 36.50-acre portion of GIS Parcel #874624200011: a minor 
subdivision for a development to be called "252nd Overlook," and a Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment to rezone the same property from 
Agricultural Preservation (AP) to Agricultural Estates (AE). The property is located in the the SE1/4 of the NW1/4, NE1/4 of the SW1/4, and NW1/4 of 
the SE1/4 of Section 24, Township 87 North, Range 46 West of the 5th P.M., Woodbury County, Iowa, and is located at 2374 252nd St., Hornick, IA 
51026. It lies approximately seven miles east of Salix and seven miles north of Hornick, east of Old Highway 141, west of Franklin Avenue, and on 
the south side of 252nd Street. The rezoning from AP to AE is requested to permit future development of the lots created by the proposed 
subdivision and to satisfy Section 3.01.1 B of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance. Notices and reviews for these applications have been 
completed: a legal notice ran in the Sioux City Journal on November 13, 2025 for the Zoning Commission public hearing and will run on December 4, 
2025 for the Board of Supervisors public hearings; property owners within 1,000 feet received mailed notice on November 10, 2025 of the Zoning 
Commission public hearing scheduled for November 24, 2025; and relevant government agencies, utilities, and other stakeholders were notified and 
asked to comment. The Woodbury County Engineer reviewed the proposal, found it compliant with Iowa Code closure requirements, and advised 
that the property owner must coordinate with the engineer’s office for any future access or modifications to existing access that require permits. The 
property is currently located in the AP zoning district and is not in the floodplain. The Zoning Commission’s recommendations on both the rezoning 
and the minor subdivision, along with draft minutes from the November 24, 2025 meeting, are included on the following pages. Comments received 
from the public as of the distribution of this packet are included in the subsequent pages of this report. 

AERIAL MAP PLAT EXCEPRT 

  

 

 

 

DESCRIPTION: 
 
Those portions of the Southeast quarter of the Northwest quarter (SE1/4-NW1/4),Northeast quarter of the Southwest quarter (NE1/4-SW1/4), and Northwest quarter of the 
Southeast quarter (NW1/4-SE1/4) of Section 24, Township 87 North, Range 46 West of the 5th P.M., Woodbury County, Iowa, described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Center quarter corner of said Section 24; thence South 87°56'49" East along the north line of the SE1/4 of said Section 24 for a distance of 361.35 feet; thence 
South 26°04'28" East for a distance of 838.63 feet; thence South 00°30'42" West for a distance of 550.00 feet to the south line of the NW1/4-SE1/4 of said Section 24; thence 
North 87°31'11" West along said south line for a distance of 728.62 feet to the southwest corner of said NW1/4-SE1/4; thence North 24°54'36" West for a distance of1436.51 feet 
to the north line of the NE1/4-SW1/4 of said Section 24; thence North 88°17'08" West along said north line for a distance of 318.36 feet; thence North 02°46'05" East for a 
distance of 520.11 feet to the centerline of 252nd Street (formerly Grange Ave) as described in legal description found on Roll 156, Image 1615 in the Woodbury County 
Recorder's Office; thence South 47°08'00" East along said centerline for a distance of 84.54 feet; thence South 60°47'11" East along said center line fora distance of 213.82 
feet; thence North 88°29'33" East along said center line for a distance of 160.55 feet; thence North 74°44'40" East along said center line for a distance of 511.50 feet to the east 
line of the NW1/4 of said Section 24; thence South 00°08'26" West for a distance of 524.17 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 36.50 acres more or less. Subject to 
easements, if any, of record or apparent. 

40



5 

 

ZONING ORDINANCE MAP AMENDMENT RECOMMENDATION 

 

 
41



6 

 

 
 

42



7 

 

MINOR SUBDIVISION RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

43



8 

 

 
 

44



45



 

 

Woodbury County Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 
Date: November 24, 2025 
Time: 5:00 PM 
Location: Board of Supervisors' Meeting Room, Basement, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas 
Street, Sioux City, IA 
 

MEETING AUDIO: 
For specific content of this meeting, refer to the recorded video on the Woodbury County Zoning 
Commission “Committee Page” on the Woodbury County website: 

- County Website Link: 
o https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/zoning_commission/ 

- YouTube Direct Link: 
o  https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=E2lrRoiGx6w 

 

Attendees 

• Commissioners Present: Chris Zellmer Zant – Chair, Tom Bride, Steve Corey, Jeff Hanson, 
Corey Meister 

• Staff Present: Dan Priestley – Zoning Coordinator, Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk 

• Supervisors Present: Kent Carper, David Dietrich 

• Public Attendees:  Gary Haruan, Cindy Foix, Leo Lidgett, Gary McMullen, Darlynn McMullen, 
Susan Chapman, Chad Brady, Lisa Brosamle, David Brosamle, Jim Thomas, Amiee Krogh, 
Deborah Sulsberger, Glenna Tevis, Bonnie Brosamle, Linda Arnolt, Roger Lorenzen, Mike 
Mooney, Rich Pope, Amy Sulsberger, Chuck Sattler, Jason Yockey, Doug Miller, Chris Kennedy, 
Keith Pease, Doug Skinner, Brenton Feuchtenberger 

 
Call to Order 
The Woodbury County Zoning Commission meeting was called to order by Chair Christine Zellmer Zant 
at approximately 5:00 PM on November 24, 2025. The Chair noted that the meeting would be audio 
taped, and minutes prepared for all parties. Attendees were asked to turn off cell phones or set them to 
vibrate and to complete the attendance sheet. The Chair reviewed the Commission's procedures for the 
meeting, including handling of agenda items, public hearings, staff reports, applicant presentations, public 
comments (requiring speakers to state name and address at the microphone, avoid repetitious 
comments, and remain respectful), closing statements, closing of hearings by motion and vote, 
deliberation, and disclosure of any ex-parte communications prior to deliberation. 
 
Roll Call 
Chair Christine Zellmer Zant conducted a roll call, noting that Commissioners Christine Zellmer Zant, Tom 
Bride, Jeff Hanson, Corey Meister, and Steve Corey were present. 
 
Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
No public comments were received on matters not listed on the agenda, either in person or via phone. 
 
Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes 
The Commission reviewed the minutes from the previous meeting (September 22, 2025). No corrections 
or additions were noted. Commissioner Jeff Hanson made a motion to approve the minutes as presented, 
which was seconded by Commissioner Tom Bride. The motion passed unanimously with all 
Commissioners present voting "aye." (5-0) 
 
Public Hearing: Consideration of Proposed Brosamle Addition Minor Subdivision (Two Lots) 
Application on Parcels #884501200002, # 884501200004, 884501200005, and #884501200006 from 
Brosamle Farms, LLC (Action Item) 
Chair Zellmer Zant opened the public hearing. 
 

46



 

 

Zoning Coordinator Dan Priestley presented the staff report. Brosamle Farms, LLC submitted an 
application for a two-lot minor subdivision named Brosamle Addition, dividing 150.57 acres from four 
government lots into Lot 1 (126.23 acres) and Lot 2 (24.34 acres). The properties are in Section 1, 
Township 88N, Range 45W (Moville Township), Government Lots 5, 6, 7, and 8, zoned Agricultural 
Preservation (AP). Located two miles southeast of Moville, south of 160th Street and west of Ida Avenue. 
The proposal was noticed in the Sioux City Journal on November 13, 2025, and neighbors within 1,000 
feet were notified by letter on November 10, 2025. Stakeholders, including government agencies and 
utilities, were notified. The Woodbury County Engineer confirmed compliance with Iowa Code closure 
requirements and advised coordination for access permits. The property is not in a floodplain. The City of 
Moville waived review via Council Resolution 2025-14. The proposal meets basic approval criteria. After 
packet printing, neighbor David Brosamle (1625 Ida Avenue) verbally expressed no objections. 
 
Applicant representative David Brosamle spoke, stating his name and address for the record. He 
explained he owns one-fifth of the land and seeks to purchase the rest from the LLC for continued 
pasture use since the 1970s, raising cattle, with no plans for housing development. He noted existing 
road access and thanked staff for assistance. 
 
No other public comments were received. 
 
Commissioners had no questions. Priestley confirmed the verbal comment from David Brosamle was 
entered into the record. 
 
Commissioner Tom Bride made a motion to close the public hearing. Corey Meister seconded. The 
motion passed unanimously by voice vote (ayes: all; opposed: none). 
 
Commissioner Jeff Hanson made a motion to recommend approval of the plat as submitted to the Board 
of Supervisors. Commissioner Steve Corey seconded. No further discussion. The motion passed 
unanimously by voice vote (ayes: all; opposed: none). 
 
Priestley explained next steps: The plat goes to the Board of Supervisors for final approval, requiring 
signatures from county departments and stakeholders, then recording in the Recorder's Office if 
approved. 
 
Public Hearing: Consideration of Proposed 252nd Overlook Minor Subdivision (Five Lots) 
Application on Parcel #874624200011 (2374 252nd, Hornick, IA 51026) from Doug Skinner of 
Skinner Holdings, LLC (Action Item) 
Chair Zellmer Zant opened the public hearing,  

Priestley presented the staff report noting this item is associated with the subsequent rezone application 
(from AP to AE) and they would be discussed together but voted on separately. Doug Skinner of Skinner 
Holdings, LLC applied for a five-lot minor subdivision named 252nd Overlook on a 36.50-acre portion in 
the Southeast quarter of the Northwest quarter (SE1/4-NW1/4), Northeast quarter of the Southwest 
quarter (NE1/4-SW1/4), and Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter (NW1/4-SE1/4) of Section 24, 
Township 87N, Range 46W. GIS Parcel #874624200011, at 2374 252nd Street, Hornick, IA, seven miles 
east of Salix and seven miles north of Hornick, east of Old Highway 141, west of Franklin Avenue, south 
of 252nd Street. Currently zoned AP, not in floodplain. Noticed in Sioux City Journal on November 13, 
2025; neighbors notified November 10, 2025. Stakeholders notified. County Engineer confirmed Iowa 
Code compliance, advised access coordination. Proposals meet basic requirements contingent on 
hearing input. 

Priestley noted additional information received post-packet: County Engineer Laura Sievers' memo with a 
correction (754.64 feet on the plat, not 757.63). Commissioner Tom Bride made a motion to receive the 
memo into the record and associate the corrected number with the final plat. Commissioner Steve Corey_ 
seconded. The motion passed unanimously by voice vote (ayes: all; opposed: none). 

47



 

 

Priestley read and requested receipt of public comments into the record: 

• Reverend Jim Thomas Jr. (November 20, 2025): Opposes rezone/subdivision, citing blocked 
scenic views of Loess Hills, privatization, altering rural character; urges denial to preserve appeal. 

• Citizen petition by Gary McMullen (November 21, 2025, 35-40 signatures): Opposes, citing 
inadequate gravel roads, reduced Loess Hills enjoyment, potential tax hikes, strain on services, 
fragile soil risks; included map. 

• Richard Pope (November 21, 2025): Opposes due to Loess Hills soil (low CSR, steep slopes, 
erosion-prone), part of Iowa's largest prairie remnant; recommends denying to preserve non-crop 
values. 

• Seth Brooks (on behalf of Loess Hills National Scenic Byway, via Golden Hills RC&D, November 
21, 2025): Urges evaluation for impacts on Loess Hills National Scenic Byway, ecology, 
viewshed; stresses responsible decisions. 

• Gary and Darlynn McMullen (November 21, 2025): Strongly oppose; preserve unique Loess Hills 
for public enjoyment (visible from byway); warn of road deterioration with traffic. 

Commissioner Cory Meister made a motion to receive all documents (names, petition, letters, emails) into 
the record. Commissioner Steve Corey seconded. The motion passed unanimously by voice vote (ayes: 
all; opposed: none). 

Applicant Doug Skinner (Skinner Holdings, LLC) and Brenton Feuchtenberger presented. Skinner 
addressed what he called misinformation in the petition: Minimal financial impact on distant residents; 
only McMullens within 1,000 feet; three homes won't materially impact steep/windy 252nd Street or 
Highway 141 (no engineer report supports otherwise); "limit development" means "no development"; tax 
increases misstated (AE vs. AP taxation differs, precedent for AE nearby); three homes won't affect 
watershed/aquifer; increases safety via more residents; no county services strain; hypocrisy in petitioner's 
2004 home build. Emphasized property rights over emotion/opinion. 

Feuchtenberger provided handouts (maps, explanations). Commissioner Tom Bride made a motion to 
receive handouts into the record. Commissioner Steve Corey seconded. The motion passed unanimously 
by voice vote (ayes: all; opposed: none).  

Feuchtenberger explained backstory: Purchased 290 acres over two years (highlighted in red on map), 
seeking to buy remaining land excluding existing home (#4). Minor subdivision/rezone required; not 
intending dense development (e.g., Whispering Creek); could create 12-14 lots but proposing five (one 
unbuildable); follows quarter-quarter lines, congruent with AP spirit (two homes per 40 acres); access (Xs 
on map) for hunting; no immediate home-building plans; compromise limits future density; AP allows 
similar without rezone via road splits/natural boundaries. 

Public comments (opposition focused on preserving Loess Hills, environmental fragility, road 
maintenance/traffic, rural character, dairy proximity odors, watershed/erosion, increased services strain, 
tax impacts, scenic byway views): 

• Gary McMullen: Lives across opposes due to unique landscape preservation, visible from byway; 
road deterioration; resentment.  Existing house driveway would drive through hunting area, safety 
issue. 

• Cindy Foix: Opposes: fragile ecosystem, erosion risks; questions access/maintenance; preserve 
for future generations.  Question if proposed easement with 3 additional lots would remain AP. 
Concerns of hunting lodge or condos being allowed. 

• Leo Lidgett: Opposes: Loess Hills rarity, erosion-prone; development threatens; references past 
protections. 

• Susan Chapman: Opposes; preserve views/character; road safety concerns post-rain. 

• Chad Brady: Opposes; environmental impact, soil fragility; alternatives exist elsewhere. 

• Jim Thomas: Opposes; blocks public views, privatizes; deny to preserve appeal. 

48



 

 

• Amiee Krogh: Opposes; Loess Hills conservation priority; development risks. 

• Supervisor Carper: Shotgun or rifle hunting may be issue, bow not as much; sees both sides. 
Recommended Board of Supervisors visit site. 

• Deborah Sulsberger: Opposes; steep roads unsuitable for more traffic; preserve natural state. 

• Darlynn McMullen: Stated rumor that 10 homes would be built. 

• Doug Miller:  Questioned as to why not just buy it instead of doing subdivision. 

• Glenna Tevis: Questions restrictions (single-family only? No condos/lodges?); dairy odor 
concerns. Priestley clarified: AE allows single-family dwellings; multi-family prohibited/conditional; 
hunting lodges not enumerated but hospitality uses restricted. 

• Linda Arnolt: Opposes; maintain sparse areas per 2040 plan; soil conservation recommends AP; 
dairy complaints; road calls to engineer. 

• Roger Lorenzen: Opposes; road conditions after rain; adds gravel miles. 

• Mike Mooney: Opposes; environmental devastation risks. 

• Rich Pope: Praises handling fragile Loess Hills issues; population growth vs. environment; 
questions AP to AE advantage (density, setbacks differ; AE for multi-lots per ordinance). Priestley 
explained: AE for >2 parcels per quarter-quarter; setbacks 75 ft vs. 100 ft; uses mostly similar, 
density key. Once area is lost, it’s gone. 

• Amy Sulsberger: Opposes; preserve prairie remnant. 

• Chuck Sattler: Opposes; road maintenance strain. 

• Jason Yockey: Questions order (rezone before subdivide?); could approve subdivision but deny 
rezone, limiting builds. Priestley: Possible to delay rezone; triggers at building permit if >2 homes. 

• Jim Thomas: Opposes; dairy proximity clarification (2-3 miles, valley/road separation).  Keep 
sparse areas sparse. 

• Chris Kennedy: Opposes; watershed impacts. 

• Keith Pease: Questions practical AP vs. AE differences with restrictions (density control; some 
AP commercial uses prohibited in AE). Priestley displayed ordinance table online, explaining uses 
(agriculture identical; residential density differs; some commercial restricted in AE). 

• Commissioner Bride commented on property rights, not high density project. 

• Commissioner Zant also spoke of property rights; conservation. 

• Commissioner Steve Corey commented on landowner rights, easement approves of easement 
compromise.  

Skinner reiterated compromise: Restriction limits to three additional homes max, aligning with AP; no 
current build plans. 

Commissioner Tom Bride commented: Beneficial intent; AP already allows worse scenarios. 
Commissioner Steve Corey offered site visit with supervisors. 

Commissioner Tom Bride made a motion to close the public hearing. Commissioner Steve Corey 
seconded. The motion passed unanimously by voice vote (ayes: all; opposed: none). 

Commissioner Jeff Hason announced that he would be abstaining for voting on the two agenda items 
from Doug Skinner due to non-financial conflicts of interest.  

Commissioner Tom Bride made a motion to recommend approval of the subdivision to the Board of 
Supervisors, using the updated draft including the correct dimension form the county engineer with 
restriction of no more than three additional homes. Commissioner Steve Corey seconded. The motion 
passed by voice vote (ayes: 4; opposed: 0; abstentions: 1 Jeff Hanson). 

Public Hearing: Consideration of Proposed Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) 
Application from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District to the Agricultural Estates (AE) 
Zoning District on Parcel #874624200011 from Doug Skinner of Skinner Holdings, LLC (2374 
252nd, Hornick, IA 51026) (Action Item) 

49



 

 

Chair Zellmer Zant opened the public hearing. (Discussions overlapped with prior item but focused on 
rezone specifics: AP vs. AE differences, density, uses.) 

Priestley reiterated: Rezone for 36.50 acres to accommodate lots per Section 3.01.1.B; meets 
requirements contingent on input.  

Priestley asked the Commission to receive an updated draft of the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment 
Rezone ordinance language into the record to correct the acres to 36.50 acres. Commissioner Steve 
Corey made a motion to receive the updated draft of the rezone ordinance.  Commissioner Tom Bride 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed by voice vote ayes: 4; opposed: 0; abstentions: 1 Jeff Hanson. 

Public comments continued from prior hearing, emphasizing opposition to rezone for same reasons 
(preservation, etc.). Additional clarifications on AP (agricultural focus, 2 homes/quarter-quarter) vs. AE 
(allows more density but with restrictions; some uses prohibited). 

Commissioner questions: Practical differences with restriction (minimal; density key); ordinance nuances 
(farmer exemptions, building permits). 

Commissioner Steve Corey made a motion to close the public hearing. Commissioner Corey Meister  
seconded. The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. ayes: 4; opposed: 0; abstentions: 1 Jeff 
Hanson. 

Commissioner Bride made a motion to recommend the rezone to the Board of Supervisors, using the 
updated draft with restriction of no more than three additional homes. Commissioner Steve Corey 
seconded. No further discussion. The motion passed by voice vote (ayes: 4; opposed: 0; abstentions: 1 
Jeff Hanson.) 

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
No additional public comments were received on matters not listed on the agenda, either in person or via 
phone. 
 
Staff Update 
Priestley updated: Zoning Commission/Board of Adjustment applications open, deadline December 1, 
2025. New state law requires training (~1.5 hours) for new members (ex-parte, public engagement); 
existing members grandfathered. Exploring in-house compliance system; applies to Supervisors too. 
Brosamle item to Supervisors sooner (no rezone); Skinner items on December 9, 16, or 23, 2025. 
 
Commissioner Comment or Inquiry 
No Commissioners offered additional comments or inquiries. 
 
Adjournment 
Commissioner Corey Meister moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Commissioner Steve Corey. 
The motion passed unanimously with all Commissioners present voting "aye." (5-0) The meeting 
adjourned at approximately 7:49 PM. 
 
Appendix  
Received Materials on subsequent pages. 
 

- County Engineer’s Review Memo making a change to the final plat to 754.64 feet. 
- Written comments from citizens. 
- Map from Brenton Feuchtenberger  
- Updated draft of the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment 

 
 

50



 

 

 

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



 

 

 
 

 
 

68



 

 

 
 

 
 

69



33 

 

STAFF NOTE OF CLARIFICATION OF ADDITION – PRELIMINARY TITLE OPINION             
*Added after the Zoning Commission Meeting* 
In addition to the “Attorney’s Title Opinion” that is and was included on the face of the proposed final plat, the subsequent 
pages include the “Preliminary Title Opinion #45856P.” The preliminary is being added for information purposes in addition to 
the title opinion already included on the final plat. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

70



34 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

71



35 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

72



36 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

73



37 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

74



38 

 

ATTORNEY’S TITLE OPINION ON FINAL PLAT 

 
 

 

 

75



39 

 

APPLICATION 

 
 

76



S24°54'36"E 608.87'

NO CAP

34.3'

NO CAP 100d SPIKE

NO CAP NO CAP

41.4'

43.5' SE1/4
-NW1/4

NE1/4-
SW1/4

NW1/4-S
E1/4

S e c .   2 4 - 8 7 - 4 6

SW1/4-N
E1/4

3.452 Ac.
Lot 1

6.303 Ac.
Lot 2

95.25'

N65°05'24"E

C2

L=90.50

S66°40'50"W 271.44'

N24°54'36"W
 757.64'

S51°46'05"W
 261.06'

S53°09'59"E
118.99'

S22°34'26"E

148.31'

S12°41'54"E 273.21'

S53°09'59"E
112.20'

S47°08'00"E
84.54'

S60°47'11"E 213.82' N88°29'33"E
160.55'

N74°44'40"E 511.50'

S0
0°

08
'2

6"
W

 5
24

.1
7'

S87°56'49"E 361.35'

S26°04'28"E 838.63'

S0
0°

30
'4

2"
W

 5
50

.0
0'

N87°31'11"W 728.62'

N24°54'36"W
 1436.51''

N88°17'08"W 318.36'

N
02

°4
6'

05
"E

 5
20

.1
1'

S87°56'49"E 2238.99'

S88°17'08"E 360.03'

L=229.55' ,
R=325.00' ,

∆=40°28'04"

C
hor d=224.81'

Br g.=S32°55'57"E

L=186.88' , R=350.00' ,

∆=30°35'33"

Chor d=184.67'

Br g.=S37°52'12"E

C u r v e   T a b l e

Curve #

C1

C2

Delta

24°30'50"

15°57'14"

Radius

325.00'

325.00'

Length

139.05'

90.50'

Chord Dir. - Length

S24°57'20"E-137.99'

S45°11'22"E-90.20'

N66°40'50"E     5
00.78'

S66°40'50"W 229.34'

E1/4 COR.
SEC. 24-87-46

FOUND WPA MON.

CENTER, SEC. 24-87-46
POINT OF BEGINNING

SOUTH LINE
NW1/4-SE1/4
SEC. 24-87-46

NORTH LINE
NE1/4-SW1/4
SEC. 24-87-46

NW COR.
NE1/4-SW1/4
SEC. 24-87-46

NORTH LINE, SE1/4
SEC. 24-87-46

SW COR.
NW1/4-SE1/4

SEC. 24-87-46

EAST LINE, NW1/4
SEC. 24-87-46

252n
d Str

eet

S79°09'34"E135.86'

EXISTING 66.00' PUBLIC ROAD R.O.W.

70.00'

N74°53'19"E 506.68'
S47°16'09"E 79.84'

42.12' 118.43'

8.120 Ac.
Lot 3

EXISTING SEPTIC
TANK/FIELD

EXISTING WELL

EXISTING HOUSE

EXISTING STEEL UTILITY BUILDING

150.2'

EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE

60.0' PRIVATE ACCESS EASEMENT
CREATED BY THIS PLAT

30'

30'

N40°
23'

06"
E 16

5.6
7'

10.0' TRAIL EASEMENT
CREATED BY THIS PLAT

347.00'

3.064 Ac.
Lot 5

C1
L=139.05

INCL. 0.326 Ac.
PUBLIC R.O.W.

INCL. 0.483 Ac.
PUBLIC R.O.W.

60.0' PRIVATE ACCESS EASEMENT
CREATED BY THIS PLAT

30' 30'

#7193

L=114.53', R=384.45',
Chord=114.11'
Brg.=S84°04'37"W

L=269.19' , R=384.45',

Chor d=263.73'

Br g.=N67°19'44"W

WEST LINE, NW1/4-SE1/4
SEC. 24-87-46

15.561 Ac.
Lot 4

S58°12'43"E 696.58'

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION:

I, David A. Lamberton, a duly licensed Land Surveyor under the provisions of the
laws of the State of Iowa, holding Certificate No. 15746, do hereby certify that the
Plat of 252nd Overlook, a Minor Subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa, is a true
representation of a survey made by me or under my direct supervision, and that the
same is located upon and comprises the whole of the attached described property.

I do hereby certify that there are contained in said description the lots described in
the Addition platted; that the same are of the dimensions, numbers, names and
locations as shown on said plat and that iron stakes will be placed as required by
Iowa Code.

 Dated at Sioux City, Iowa _______________________________, 2025

 ____________________________________________________
 David A. Lamberton,  Iowa No. 15746
 License Renewal Date: December 31, 2026 Date: November 19, 2025

Drawn By: DAL
Project No. 275071
Sheet:     1 OF 2

DGR Engineering
6115 Whispering Creek Drive

Sioux City, IA  51106
(712) 266-1554
www.dgr.com

OWNER / SUBDIVIDER:
Skinner Holdings, L.L.C.
300 Centennial Drive, Suite 295
North Sioux City, SD 57049
712-251-2476

SURVEYOR:
DGR Engineering
6115 Whispering Creek Drive
Sioux City, IA 51106
(712) 266-1554
David A. Lamberton, PLS
dave.lamberton@dgr.com

SUBDIVISION:
5 Lots = 36.500 Acres
Smallest Lot = 3.452 Acres

FEMA:
Zone X, Area of Minimal Flood Hazard

PROPOSED ZONING:
AE - Agricultural Estates

Setbacks:
Front yard = 75'
Side yard = 20'
  Accessory structure = 10'
Rear yard =  50'
  Accessory structure = 10'

F I N A L   P L A T   O F

252nd OVERLOOK
A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

INDEX LEGEND:

PART OF: SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, NW1/4-SE1/4,
Section 24, T87N-R46W

CURRENT PROPRIETOR: Skinner Holdings, L.L.C.

SURVEY REQUESTED BY: Skinner Holdings, L.L.C.

PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO:
David A. Lamberton, DGR Engineering, 6115 Whispering Creek Dr.,
Sioux City,  IA   51106    (712) 266-1554    dave.lamberton@dgr.com

SUBDIVISION DESCRIPTION:

Those portions of the Southeast quarter of the Northwest quarter (SE1/4-NW1/4),
Northeast quarter of the Southwest quarter (NE1/4-SW1/4), and Northwest quarter
of the Southeast quarter (NW1/4-SE1/4) of Section 24, Township 87 North, Range
46 West of the 5th P.M., Woodbury County, Iowa, described as follows:

Beginning at the Center quarter corner of said Section 24; thence South 87°56'49" East
along the north line of the SE1/4 of said Section 24 for a distance of 361.35 feet;
thence South 26°04'28" East for a distance of 838.63 feet; thence South 00°30'42" West
for a distance of 550.00 feet to the south line of the NW1/4-SE1/4 of said Section 24;
thence North 87°31'11" West along said south line for a distance of 728.62 feet to the
southwest corner of said NW1/4-SE1/4; thence North 24°54'36" West for a distance of
1436.51 feet to the north line of the NE1/4-SW1/4 of said Section 24; thence North
88°17'08" West along said north line for a distance of 318.36 feet; thence North
02°46'05" East for a distance of 520.11 feet to the centerline of 252nd Street (formerly
Grange Ave) as described in legal description found on Roll 156, Image 1615 in the
Woodbury County Recorder's Office; thence South 47°08'00" East along said center
line for a distance of 84.54 feet; thence South 60°47'11" East along said center line for
a distance of 213.82 feet; thence North 88°29'33" East along said center line for a
distance of 160.55 feet; thence North 74°44'40" East along said center line for a
distance of 511.50 feet to the east line of the NW1/4 of said Section 24; thence South
00°08'26" West for a distance of 524.17 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 36.50
acres more or less. Subject to easements, if any, of record or apparent.

I O W A

PR
O

FE
SS

IO

NAL  LAND SURVEYO
R

DAVID A.
LAMBERTON

15746

SET 1/2" x 30" REBAR w/ ORANGE CAP #15746

FOUND 1/2" REBAR w/ ORANGE CAP #15746

FOUND 1/2" REBAR w/ YELLOW CAP #10570

LEGEND

FOUND 5/8" REBAR w/ YELLOW CAP #13202

NOTES:
· See Plat of Survey - Roll 727, Image 3106.
· See Plat of Survey - Instrument #: 2024-03232.
· Boundary line along 252nd St. determined from legal description

found on Roll 156, Image 1615 and found monuments in road.
· R.O.W. easement determined from Woodbury County Project L-273

plans, and existing centerline of road.

Acreage Breakdown:
NW1/4-SE1/4 = 18.45 ac.
NE1/4-SW1/4 =  8.97 ac.
SE1/4-NW1/4 =  9.08 ac.
GROSS AREA  = 36.50 ac.
ROAD ROW =     0.81 ac.
NET AREA =    35.69 ac.

SCALE
1 inch = 120 feet

All bearings are referenced to the Iowa
Regional Coordinate System, Zone 4

VICINITY MAP NO SCALE

77



F I N A L   P L A T   O F

252nd OVERLOOK
A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

Date: November 19, 2025
Drawn By: DAL
Project No. 275071
Sheet:     2 OF 2

DGR Engineering
6115 Whispering Creek Drive

Sioux City, IA  51106
(712) 266-1554
www.dgr.com

RESOLUTION AND CERTIFICATE OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY
ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

I, Chris Zellmer Zant, do hereby certify that I am the Chairperson of the Woodbury
County Zoning Commission of Woodbury County, Iowa, and do further certify that said
Commission did take under advisement the attached Plat of 252nd Overlook, a Minor
Subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa, and that said Woodbury County Zoning
Commission of Woodbury County, Iowa did on the ____ day of_______________, ___
approve the same and does further hereby recommend to the Woodbury County Board
of Supervisors, Woodbury County, Iowa, the acceptance and approval of said Plat.

Dated  ___________________________, _______________________________
                                                               Chris Zellmer Zant
                                                              Chairperson, Woodbury County Zoning

Commission of Woodbury County, Iowa

CERTIFICATE OF COUNTY ASSESSOR

I, Tyler Mogensen, hereby certify that on the_____day of _________________, _____,
a copy of this Plat was filed in the Woodbury County Assessor's Office.

 Dated  _________________________, ____________________________
Tyler Mogensen
City Assessor

TREASURER'S CERTIFICATE OF
TAXES AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

I, Tina M. Bertrand, Treasurer of Woodbury County, Iowa, do hereby certify that the land
described in the attached and foregoing Surveyor's Certificate is free from certified taxes
and certified special assessments.

Dated  _________________________, _____________________________
Tina M. Bertrand
Treasurer Woodbury County, Iowa

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS RESOLUTION NO.                                             .

Resolution accepting and approving the Plat of 252nd Overlook, a Minor Subdivision to
Woodbury County, Iowa.

Whereas, it appears that said plat conforms with all the provisions of the code of the
State of Iowa and ordinances of Woodbury County, Iowa, with reference to the filing of
same; AND

Whereas, the Zoning Commission of Woodbury County, Iowa has recommended the
acceptance and approval of said plat; AND

Whereas, the County Engineer of Woodbury County, Iowa has recommended the
acceptance and approval of said plat.

Now therefore, be, and it is hereby resolved by the Woodbury County Board of
Supervisors, Woodbury County, Iowa, that said Plat of 252nd Overlook, a Minor
Subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa, be, and the same is hereby accepted and
approved, and the chairman and secretary of the Woodbury County Board of
Supervisors, Woodbury County, State of Iowa, are hereby directed to furnish to the
owners an proprietors a certified copy of this resolution as required by law.

Passed and approved this _______ day of  ___________________________, ______

________________________________
Daniel A. Bittenger II
Chairman
Board of Supervisors
Woodbury County, Iowa

________________________________
ATTEST:  Michelle K. Skaff
Secretary

COUNTY ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATE

I, Laura Sievers, P.E., The County Engineer of Woodbury County, Iowa, do hereby
certify that I have reviewed the attached plat and have mathematically computed the
error of closure of the plat perimeter and of the lots contained therein, and find that
said plat conforms with the closure requirements of the Woodbury County Subdivision
Ordinance for the unincorporated area of Woodbury County, Iowa.

 Dated  ______________________, ___________________________________
Laura Sievers, P.E.
County Engineer, Woodbury County, Iowa

AUDITOR AND RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE OF RECORDING

STATE OF IOWA :
: ss

COUNTY OF WOODBURY :

Docket No: ____________________________

Filed for record, this___________day of_________________________, _____,

at________o'clock _____.M. recorded in Plat Envelope_____________, indexed
and delivered to the County Auditor of Woodbury County, Iowa.

Dated  _________________________, _________________________________
Michelle K. Skaff, Auditor and Recorder,
Woodbury County, Iowa
By: Diane Swoboda Peterson, Deputy

AUDITOR'S APPROVAL OF SUBDIVISION NAME OR TITLE

The County Auditor hereby accepts and approves the name or title of the
attached Subdivision Plat as required by Iowa Code section 354.6(2).

Dated  ________________________, _________________________________
Michelle K. Skaff, Auditor and Recorder,
Woodbury County, Iowa
By: Diane Swoboda Peterson, Deputy

DEDICATION

Skinner Holdings, LLC, a South Dakota limited liability company, the owner of the real
estate described in the attached Surveyor's Certificate, has in the pursuance of the law,
caused said described real estate to be surveyed, staked and platted into lots and
easements, as is particularly shown and set forth in the attached Plat and said Certificate
of David A. Lamberton, a Licensed Surveyor who surveyed and platted the real estate to
be known as 252nd Overlook, a Minor Subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa; that the
same is prepared with the free consent and in accordance with the desires as owner and
proprietor thereof.

Executed at Sioux City, Iowa, the ________day of____________________, _____.

SKINNER HOLDINGS, LLC

By: __________________________________
       Douglas Skinner, Manager

STATE OF IOWA :
: ss

COUNTY OF WOODBURY :

This record was acknowledged before me on _________________________________,
by Douglas Skinner, as Manager of Skinner Holdings, LLC.

________________________________
    Notary Public - State of Iowa

TITLE OPINION

TO: COUNTY AUDITOR AND RECORDER
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

Dear Madam:

We have this date examined a complete abstract to Title, pursuant to Iowa Code Section
354.11(1)(c) to property which includes in its entirety, property described in the surveyor’s
certificate on the plat of: 252nd Overlook, a Minor Subdivision of the City of Sioux City, Woodbury
County, Iowa, last certified by Engleson Abstract Co., Inc., dated _______________, 2025 at 8:59
a.m. and from said abstract find good and merchantable title to said premises vested in Skinner
Holdings, LLC, the proprietor, free and clear of all mortgages, liens and other encumbrances,
except as follows:

1. Mortgage from Skinner Holdings, LLC, to Central Bank, dated May 14, 2021, and filed on
May 18, 2021, as Instrument #2021-06689.

2. Option Agreement from Skinner Holdings, LLC, to Habitat Restoration Services, LLC, dated
June 13, 2025, filed on June 17, 2025, as Instrument #2025-06047.

3. Easement from Leo Lux and Mary Lux, husband and wife to Woodbury County Soil
Conservation District of Sioux City, Iowa, dated August 27, 1960 and filed October 7, 1960, in Book
957, Page 303.

4. Easement from C.J. Hector and Lois V. Drake, (Single) to Woodbury County, Iowa dated
March 26, 1954 and filed May 4, 1954, in Book 748, Page 264.

5. Easement from C.J. Hector and Lois V. Drake, (Single) to Woodbury County, Iowa dated
March 26, 1954 and filed May 4, 1954 in Book 748, Page 262Development Agreement between
Clayton Creek, L.L.C. and the City of Sioux City, Iowa, dated April 24, 2017 and filed on April 25,
2017 in Roll 752, Image 4744.

6. Easement from Emil Levich and Frankie Levich, husband and wife, to Woodbury County Soil
Conservation District of Sioux City, Iowa, its successors and assigns, dated May 2, 1960 and filed
May 10. 1960 in Book 947, Page 385.

7. Maintenance Agreement dated May 12, 1960 and filed May 12, 1960 in Book 947, Page 415.

8. Easement from Emil Levich and Frankie Levich, husband and wife, to Woodbury County Soil
Conservation District of Sioux City, Iowa, its successors and assigns, dated September 27, 1960
and filed October 7, 1960 in Book 957, Page 294.

9. Maintenance Agreement dated September 27, 1960 and filed October 7, 1960 in Book 957,
Page 288.

10. Easement for Use of Trail System, dated March 29, 2024, filed April 1, 2024 in Inst.
#2024-02717.

11. All certified real estate taxes and special assessments due and payable have been paid.
Real estate taxes and special assessments not certified are a lien in an undetermined amount.

Dated: _____________________, _______.

______________________
Alex S. Berenstein
ATTORNEY AT LAW

STATEMENT OF MORTGAGE HOLDER

The undersigned Central Bank, the present owner and holder of the Mortgage, recorded as
Document Number: 2021-06689, states that the Plat of 252nd Overlook, a Minor Subdivision to
Woodbury County, Iowa, is prepared with Central Bank's free consent and in accordance with
its desire. This statement is made in accordance with Iowa Code section 354.11(1)(b).

Dated: _________________________, _____.
Central Bank
By: _____________________________

Its: _____________________________
STATE OF IOWA :

: ss
COUNTY OF WOODBURY :

This record was acknowledged before me on the ____________________________________,

by ________________________________ as ________________________ of Central Bank.

By: ____________________________
Notary Public in and for said State

CONSENT TO PLATTING

The undersigned Habitat Restoration Services, LLC, the present owner and holder of the
Option Agreement, recorded as Document Number: 2025-06047, states that the Plat of 252nd
Overlook, a Minor Subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa, is prepared with Habitat Restoration
Services, LLC's free consent and in accordance with its desire. This statement is made in
accordance with Iowa Code section 354.11(1)(b).

Dated: _________________________, ______.

Habitat Restoration Services, LLC

By: __________________________________
Brenton Feuchtenberger, Manager

STATE OF IOWA :
: ss

COUNTY OF WOODBURY :

This record was acknowledged before me on ____________________________________,
by Brenton Feuchtenberger, as Manager of Habitat Restoration Services, LLC.

By: ____________________________
Notary Public in and for said State

78



42 

 

 

FINAL PLAT DISCLAIMER 
The final plat may be modified—including additions or corrections to the map, certificates, or any matter shown 

on the face of the plat—during the review process, including from reviews by the Zoning Commission and the 

Board of Supervisors, up through the official recording. 

 
ATTACHMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS FINAL PLAT WILL/MAY ALSO BE ADDED AND RECORDED 

SEPARATELY 

- DEDICATION, IF APPLICABLE 

- TITLE OPINION OR UPDATED TITLE OPINION, IF APPLICABLE 

- RESOLUTION FROM THE NEAREST CITY 

- AGREEMENT TO IMPOSE COVENANT BASED UPON LINEAL LOT FRONTAGE, IF APPLICABLE 

- MORTGAGE RESOLUTION, IF APPLICABLE 

- Etc. 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING STAFF – REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE) 

The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Per these requirements, Planning and Zoning staff: 

 shall review a subdivision application for completeness and for approval of a final plat by ensuring it is submitted in 
accordance with the standards for a subdivision plat per Iowa Code. 

 Staff reviewed the subdivision application, deemed it complete, and verified the final plat’s conformance to the County’s Zoning 
Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance, and the Code of Iowa, all as required by law. 

 shall accept payment of applicable fees, and distribute copies of the final plat to the Planning & Zoning Commission, the 
appropriate county departments and public utilities; and 

 Staff received the application fee and the account is paid-in-full.  Staff also distributed copies of the application, final plat, and other 
materials to all relevant stakeholders as required. 

 shall coordinate with the County Engineer who shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the engineering design 
standards of these regulations and to verify accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data; and 

 Staff have received the review memo from the County Engineer and it has been included within this report. 

 shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the design standards of these regulations and with the required form 
of the plat and related documents; and 

 Staff has reviewed the final plat of this proposed subdivision plat and has determined this to be a “minor subdivision” and not a “major 
subdivision.” Should the property owner further develop the lots, they must comply with all applicable county zoning, subdivision, 
engineering, and grading requirements. If the private driveway is to ever be considered for adoption into the county road system, they 
must work with the county engineer’s office. 

 shall assure conformance with the goals and objectives of the County’s General Plan, the CED staff may make 
recommendations for conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties. 

 The Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040 (“Comp Plan”) maps this property as Open Space / Recreational on the Future Land 
Use Map. Because the property is privately owned and not under the control of Conservation or the Iowa Department of Natural 
Resources, the owners may use the land consistent with the rules of the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District—or the Agricultural 
Estates (AE) Zoning District if a rezone is approved. Both AP and AE districts recognize open space, agricultural uses, and residential 
dwellings. The Comp Plan’s Open Space / Recreational designation encourages expanding the county’s green-space network but does 
not prohibit property owners from creating lots and building homes that meet zoning and development standards. The Zoning Commission 
and Board may impose conditions to maximize compatibility. 

 

 
ZONING COMMISSION – REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE) 

The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Per these requirements, the Planning and Zoning Commission: 

 shall conduct a public hearing on a final plat for a minor subdivision. Notice of the date, time and location of the hearing will be 
mailed to the owners of all property within 1,000 feet for the subject property not less than four nor more than twenty days prior 
to the date of the hearing; and 

79



43 

 

 Staff have ensured that the legal requirements have been met for publicly noticing this public hearing, all as required by law. Staff have 
also ensured the notice requirement for adjacent landowners within 1000 FT have also been met.  

 shall review the final plat and the staff reports and other information presented to determine whether the plat conforms to the 
ordinances, general plan and other policies of the county; and 

 Staff have compiled, reviewed, and analyzed all relevant materials to determine whether the plat conforms to the ordinances, general 
plan, and other policies of the County, or not. Staff provided this information in a “Staff Report” format and made them available to the 
Commission well in advance of the required public hearing. The Commission also held a public hearing to review, analyze, and discuss 
the final plat and other relevant information. 

 may recommend specific conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties; and 

 Staff finds that the subdivision plat and written proposal has the opportunity to meet the applicable standards on paper. However, no 
application is considered complete until it has gone through the public hearing process. The public hearing is a critical step for gathering 
information about the project and for ensuring compatibility with existing and future neighboring properties. If deemed necessary, the 
Zoning Commission and Board of Supervisors may impose conditions to maximize compatibility. 

 shall forward a report of its finding and a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors. The recommendation shall be in the 
form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat materials. A copy of the report and the resolution shall also be 
forwarded to the property owner, the subdivider and the land surveyor for the subdivision. 

 During its required public hearing on the final plat, the Board of Supervisors will receive the final staff report and the Commission's 
recommendation on said plat and shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the plat. The Supervisors may table the matter 
with the consent of the subdivider. Approval shall be in the form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat. Staff will coordinate 
with the subdivider and land surveyor to ensure all copies and recordings are submitted and received, all as required by law.  

 

80



44 

 

 

81



45 

 

82



46 

 

 

83



47 

 

84



48 

 

85



49 

 

 

86



50 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

Those portions of the Southeast quarter of the Northwest quarter (SE1/4-NW1/4),Northeast quarter of the 

Southwest quarter (NE1/4-SW1/4), and Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter (NW1/4-SE1/4) of Section 24, 

Township 87 North, Range 46 West of the 5th P.M., Woodbury County, Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Center quarter corner of said Section 24; thence South 87°56'49" East along the north line of the 

SE1/4 of said Section 24 for a distance of 361.35 feet; thence South 26°04'28" East for a distance of 838.63 feet; 

thence South 00°30'42" West for a distance of 550.00 feet to the south line of the NW1/4-SE1/4 of said Section 

24; thence North 87°31'11" West along said south line for a distance of 728.62 feet to the southwest corner of said 

NW1/4-SE1/4; thence North 24°54'36" West for a distance of1436.51 feet to the north line of the NE1/4-SW1/4 of 

said Section 24; thence North 88°17'08" West along said north line for a distance of 318.36 feet; thence North 

02°46'05" East for a distance of 520.11 feet to the centerline of 252nd Street (formerly Grange Ave) as described 

in legal description found on Roll 156, Image 1615 in the Woodbury County Recorder's Office; thence South 

47°08'00" East along said centerline for a distance of 84.54 feet; thence South 60°47'11" East along said center 

line fora distance of 213.82 feet; thence North 88°29'33" East along said center line for a distance of 160.55 feet; 

thence North 74°44'40" East along said center line for a distance of 511.50 feet to the east line of the NW1/4 of 

said Section 24; thence South 00°08'26" West for a distance of 524.17 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 

36.50 acres more or less. Subject to easements, if any, of record or apparent. 

 

EVALUATION CRITERIA 

The Zoning Commission shall base their recommendations and the Board of Supervisors shall base their decision on any requested amendment of 
the zoning district map on the following criteria: 

 Conformance with the goals and objectives set forth in the approved general development plan for Woodbury County including the future land 
use map. 

 The Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040 (“Comp Plan”) shows this property as Open Space / Recreational on the Future Land Use Map. 
That designation encourages expansion of the county’s green-space network but does not transfer ownership or control to conservation 
authorities or the Iowa Department of Natural Resources. Because this is private property, the owners retain the right to use it consistent with the 
applicable zoning. If the property is rezoned to Agricultural Preservation (AP) or Agricultural Estates (AE), the owners may use the land according 
to the permitted uses and standards of those districts. Both AP and AE recognize open space, agricultural uses, and residential dwellings. An 
Open Space / Recreational future-land-use designation in the Comp Plan does not prohibit a property owner from building a house on a lot that 
complies with zoning and development standards. 
(https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/files/community_economic_development/woodbury_county_comprehensive_plan_2040_89417.pdf). 

 
 
 
   

87



51 

 

 Compatibility and conformance with the policies and plans of other agencies with respect to the subject property.                  

 Please review the stakeholder comments provided subsequently in the report. Additional information may become available once the public 
hearing process begins and is not included here. The Woodbury County Soil and Water Conservation District (WCSWCD), represented by Neil 
Stockfleth (11/6/25), stated: “The WCSWCD wishes to point out that this parcel is currently zoned AP and this designation should be retained as 
part of the protected Loess Hills landform. The WCSWCD has no other comments.” 

 Consideration of the Corn Suitability (CSR) of the property.                  

 

 
 

 

 

88



52 

 

Based on the attached Iowa Corn Suitability Rating CSR2 (IA) report dated 10/28/2025, this property consists of approximately five soil map units with the following CSR2 values and areas 

• Ida silt loam, 14 to 20 percent slopes, severely eroded (1D3) CSR2: 32 | Acres: 7.9 | 12.4% of total 

• Ida silt loam, 20 to 30 percent slopes, severely eroded (1F3) CSR2: 8 | Acres: 1.1 | 1.7% of total 

• Hamburg silt loam, 40 to 75 percent slopes (2G) CSR2: 5 | Acres: 31.3 | 48.9% of total 

• Castana silt loam, 14 to 20 percent slopes (3E) CSR2: 42 | Acres: 21.8 | 34.0% of total 

• Napier-Castana silt loams, 9 to 20 percent slopes (170E) CSR2: 56 | Acres: 1.9 | 3.0% of total 

 Compatibility with adjacent land uses.                  

 The Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040 (“Comp Plan”) designates this parcel as Open Space / Recreational on the Future Land Use 
Map to encourage expansion of the county’s green-space network. That designation is policy guidance only and does not change ownership or 
transfer control to conservation authorities or the Iowa Department of Natural Resources. Because the parcel is privately owned, the owners 
retain the ability to use it consistent with applicable zoning, including for residential purposes. The Agricultural Preservation (AP) and Agricultural 
Estates (AE) zoning districts both allow open space, agricultural uses, and residential dwellings. AE preserves many AP characteristics but 
permits additional single-family dwellings within a quarter-quarter section (40 acres), which can support the Comp Plan’s housing goals. 
If the property is rezoned from AP to AE, owners may use the land according to the permitted uses and standards of those districts. Accordingly, 
the Comp Plan’s Open Space / Recreational designation alone does not prohibit construction of residences on lots that complies with zoning and 
development standards.  

 Compatibility with other physical and economic factors affecting or affected by the proposed rezoning. 

 Based on the materials provided, the parcel meets the basic criteria for consideration of a rezone from AP to AE, and the subdivision plat and lot 
configuration can satisfy the minimum requirements. Please review the stakeholder comments in this report. Additional information may emerge 
during the public hearing process, so continued information gathering is important. 

 Any other relevant factors. 

 Please read through stakeholder comments in this report. This process is required in conjunction with the minor subdivision procedure. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

89



53 

 

LEGAL NOTIFICATION – ZONING COMMISSION MEETING PUBLISHED IN THE SIOUX CITY  

 

90



54 

 

 
 

91



55 

 

Date to be Published:  December 4, 2025 - SCJ

92



56 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS RECEIVED AFTER PACKET DISTRIBUTION 
Public comments submitted after the initial packet distribution will still be accepted for the public record. Such 
comments will continue to be collected and will be requested for inclusion in the public record at the meeting when the 
related agenda item is considered, so the Board of Supervisors can review them. 
 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION 

Total Property Owners within 1000 FT via Certified Abstractor’s 
Listing: 

8 

Notification Letter Date: November 10, 2025 

Public Hearing Board: Zoning Commission (Rezone & Subdivision). The 
subdivision is an agenda item only before the Board of 
Supervisors scheduled for December 23. 

Public Hearing Date: November 24, 2025 (Zoning Commission), December 9, 
16, 23 (Board of Supervisors) 

Phone Inquiries: Gary McMullin (SEE BELOW) 
William Burrows (11/26/25) - Wanted to know where it 
was, how many acres, and the intended use(s). 

Written Inquiries: SEE BELOW 

The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.  
 

 

 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS 
Skinner Holdings, LLC 300 Centennial 

Drive, Suite 295 
North Sioux 
City 

SD 57049 No comments. 

Monona Land Restoration, 
LLC 

5414 Gordon Drive Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 

EAT Monona Land 
Restoration, LLC 

5414 Gordon Drive Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 

Habitat Restoration Services, 
LLC 

5414 Gordon Drive Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 

Aimee M. Krogh 2381 Port Neal Road Sergeant 
Bluff 

IA 51054 No comments. 

Doug K. Miller and Kathy Miller 2341 240th Street Hornick IA 51026 No comments. 
 

Gary W. McMullen and 
Darlynn McMullen 

2375 252nd Street Hornick IA 51026 Phone inquiry on November 13 about the project. In-person office visit on 
November 17. Concerned with how the property owner(s) intend to use the 
property. Not enough information has been provided. Concerned about 
impact on the area.  
WRITTEN COMMENTS PROVIDED BELOW 
 

Chad Brady and Mary Brady 2389 252nd Street Hornick IA 51026 WRITTEN COMMENTS PROVIDED BELOW 
 

 

 

 

 

 

93



57 

 

 

94



58 

 

95



59 

 

96



60 

 

97



61 

 

98



62 

 

99



63 

 

100



64 

 

101



65 

 

102



66 

 

103



67 

 

 
 

104



68 

 

 
 

105



69 

 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS 
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments received. 

CITY OF LAWTON: No comments received. 

FIBERCOMM: No comments received. 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments received. 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments received. 

LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: SEE LETTER FROM NOVEMBER 21, 2025 BELOW: 

LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments received. 

LONGLINES: No comments received. 

LUMEN: No comments received. 

MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments received. 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the proposed minor subdivision for MEC electric and it’s not in our service 
territory, we have no comments. – Casey Meinen, 11/12/25. 
 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments received. 

NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES 
(NRCS): 

No comments received. 

NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments received. 

NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this Subdivision Rezone. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff 
Zettel, 11/12/25. 
 

NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments received. 

SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments received. 

WIATEL: No comments received. 

WINNEBAGO TRIBE: No comments received. 

WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments received. 

WOODBURY COUNTY AUDITOR: No comments received. 

WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments received. 

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments received. 

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments received. 

WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: SEE REVIEW MEMO BELOW FROM NOVEMBER 19, 2025 

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments received. 

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
(REC): 

No comments received. 

WOODBURY COUNTY SHERIFF: No comments received. 

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD wishes to point out that this parcel is currently zoned AP and this 
designation should be retained as part of the protected Loess Hills landform. The 
WCSWCD has no other comments. 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: 2nd half of 2024 taxes are due and would need to be paid prior to the treasurer’s 
certification.  The amount owing is approximately $4,593.00. – Tina Bertrand, 11/12/25. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

106



70 

 

107



71 

 

108



72 

 

 
 

109



73 

 

COUNTY ENGINEER’S REVIEW MEMO 

 
 

110



74 

 

PICTOMETRY 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

111



75 

 

PLAT MAP EXCERPT 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

112



76 

 

TITLE OPINION 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

113



77 

 

PARCEL REPORT(S) 

 

114



78 

 

115



79 

 

 
 

116



80 

 

ZONING MAP 

 
 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP 
Property not within the floodplain. 

 
 

117



81 

 

ELEVATION MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

118



82 

 

SOIL REPORT 

 

 
 

119




